
________________________________________________________________________________
Damian Allen
Chief Executive

Issued on: Wednesday, 3rd February 2021

Governance Officer for this meeting Christine Rothwell
Tel. 01302 735682

Doncaster Metropolitan Borough Council
www.doncaster.gov.uk

Agenda
____________________________________________________________________
To all Members of the

OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY 
MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE
Notice is given that a Meeting of the above Committee is to be held as follows:

 
Venue:   Microsoft Teams Meeting 

Date:      Thursday, 11th February, 2021

Time:      9.30 am
___________________________________________________________________
This meeting will be held remotely via Microsoft Teams. Members and Officers will be advised 
on the process to follow, to attend this meeting. Any members of the public or press wishing to 
attend the meeting by teleconference should contact the Governance Services Team on 
telephone: 01302 735682 or 01302 734941 for further details. 

BROADCASTING NOTICE: This meeting is being filmed for subsequent broadcast via the 
Council’s web site. The Council is a Data Controller under the Data Protection Act and images 
collected during this recording will be retained in accordance with the Council’s published 
policy. Please be aware that by entering the meeting, you accept that you may be recorded 
and the recording used for the purpose set out above.

Items for Discussion:

1. Apologies for absence. 

2. To consider the extent, if any, to which the public and press are to be 
excluded from the meeting. 

3. Declarations of Interest, if any. 

Public Document Pack



4. Public Statements. 
[A period not exceeding 20 minutes for statements from up to 5 
members of the public on matters within the Committee’s remit, 
proposing action(s) which may be considered or contribute 
towards the future development of the Committee’s work 
programme].

A. Reports where the public and press may not be excluded. 

5. Corporate Plan (Pages 1 - 24)

6. Overview and Scrutiny Consideration Of The Mayor's Budget 
Proposals 2021/22 - 2024/25 (Pages 25 - 32)

MEMBERSHIP OF THE OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY MANAGEMENT 
COMMITTEE

Chair –Councillor Jane Kidd
Vice-Chair –Councillor John Healy

Councillors Bev Chapman, Neil Gethin, Mark Houlbrook, Richard A Jones, 
Majid Khan and Andrea Robinson

Invitees:

Paul O’Brien (GMB)

Education Co-optees*

John Hoare
Bernadette Nesbitt

*Education Co-optees are invited to attend the meeting and vote on any Education
functions which are the responsibility of the Authority’s Executive. They may also
participate in but not vote on other issues relating to Children and Young People



1 
 

 
 

Report 
____________________________________________________________________ 

 
                    

 
To the Chair and Members of the Overview and Scrutiny Management Committee 
 
CORPORATE PLAN 2021-22 
 

Relevant Cabinet 
Member(s) 

Wards Affected Key Decision 

Mayor Ros Jones All Yes 

 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY  
 
1. The current Corporate Plan runs out at the end of 2020/21. An updated   

Corporate Plan for 2021/22 is presented at Annex 1. It reflects the transition to a 
new Borough Strategy which will replace the Doncaster Growing Together (DGT) 
Plan. The Corporate Plan summarises: 

 

 Doncaster’s six emerging wellbeing goals for a new Borough Strategy and 
the approach that will be taken to deliver them. 

 The actions the Council will take over the next year to contribute to the 
wellbeing goals.  

 How the Council will ensure it has the capacity to deliver its contribution to 
the wellbeing goals.    

 
2. The wellbeing goals seek to build upon the successes of DGT and drive a 

transformation in wellbeing over the next 10 years. They mark a significant turning 
point in Doncaster’s commitment to improve life now and for future generations, 
as they are guided by the fundamental need to balance the wellbeing of people 
with the wellbeing of the planet.   

 
3. After the Foreword, the Corporate Plan provides a summary of the wellbeing 

goals. This is followed by a ‘Connected Council’ section that describes how the 
Council will ensure it has the capacity to fully contribute to the delivery of the 
goals. Each of the six wellbeing goals then has a specific page that captures the 
Directorate priorities for 2021/22 that will help to deliver them. The Borough 
Strategy will be submitted for approval by September 2021.   

 
EXEMPT REPORT 
 
4. This report is not exempt.  

Date: 11 February 2021                                 

Page 1

Agenda Item 5



2 

 

 
RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
5. It is recommended that OSMC consider the updated Corporate Plan and provide 

feedback.       
 
WHAT DOES THIS MEAN FOR THE CITIZENS OF DONCASTER? 
 
6. The Corporate Plan is the Council’s key strategic document for directing its        

work towards ensuring Doncaster and its people thrive.      
 
BACKGROUND 
 
7. The Corporate Plan forms the ‘Plan’ phase of the Council’s annual ‘Define and 

Deliver’ improvement cycle: 
 

PROCESS  STAGE IMPROVEMENT CYCLE  
State of the Borough Assessment  ANALYSE  

 

Updating and resourcing the Corporate Plan   PLAN  

Updating Delivery Programmes, Service Plans 
and staff Performance & Development Reviews  

DO  

Performance monitoring and reporting   REVIEW  

 
8. Over the past eighteen months, there have been seismic changes to the policy 

context for the Corporate Plan. In November 2019, devastating floods affected 
hundreds of Doncaster homes and businesses. Just as the borough was dealing 
with aftermath of this, at the start of 2020 the Covid-19 pandemic triggered an 
unprecedented health and economic crisis. In December 2020, the final report of 
the Climate and Biodiversity Commission set out the enormity of the effort 
required for Doncaster to become net carbon zero by 2040 – all of which starkly 
demonstrate how Doncaster is a ‘place of places’ in an interconnected world.     

 
9.  Within this context, there are opportunities to achieve significant and lasting 

improvements in wellbeing, including by:  
 

 Developing a more regenerative borough that renews and improves its 
assets, strengths and capabilities, for example by developing a circular 
economy that keeps finite resources in a loop of use and reuse.  

 Creating and attracting new quality ‘green’ jobs and businesses. 

 Working across local and regional boundaries on shared priorities with a ‘one 
catchment’ perspective, for example to reduce the risk of flooding.      

 Developing the ‘foundational economy’ (e.g. health and social care) and 
promoting health as the new wealth that can deliver multiple direct and indirect 
wellbeing improvements.  

 
10. At the same time, feedback from the borough-wide ‘Doncaster Talks’ listening 

exercise has reinforced the requirement for the council to respond to the 
distinctive local needs, aspirations and character of our local communities 
through its place shaping role and front-line service delivery. The pandemic has 
accelerated the transition to more agile, responsive and innovative approaches 

Page 2



3 

 

to service delivery and we have the opportunity to capitalise on them to meet the 
changing needs of people, places and businesses.             

 
UPDATED CORPORATE PLAN 2021-22 
 
11.  After the Foreword, the Corporate Plan provides a summary of the wellbeing 

goals. The Doncaster Wellbeing Wheel below provides an overview of the 
wellbeing goals which collectively contribute to one central mission: Thriving 
People, Places and Planet.   

 

 
 
12. The wellbeing goals seek to build upon the successes of DGT and drive a 

transformation in wellbeing over the next 10 years. They mark a significant turning 
point in Doncaster’s commitment to improve life now and for future generations, 
as they are guided by the fundamental need to balance the wellbeing of people 
and the well-being of the planet.   

 
13. A ‘Connected Council’ section follows the summary of the wellbeing goals and 

describes how the Council will ensure it has the capacity to fully contribute to the 
delivery of the goals.     

 
14. Each of the six wellbeing goals then has a specific page, which sets out the vision, 

service standards (where appropriate) and directorate priorities for 2021/22 that 
will help to deliver the wellbeing goals. However, new actions will also need to be 
considered as the work on the Borough Strategy priorities progresses. The 
Borough Strategy will be submitted for approval by September 2021. 

 
 
OPTIONS CONSIDERED 
 
15. Three main options were considered for the updated Corporate Plan: 
 

a) A plan focused on building the ‘Connected Council’ capacity to deliver 

Page 3



4 

 

quality services and an effective place-shaping role.   
b) A plan that combines ‘Connected Council’ capacity with the actions 

needed to deliver the existing DGT priority themes, given that a new 
Borough Strategy has not yet been agreed.     

c) A plan that combines actions which will contribute to delivering the 
emerging wellbeing goals, with actions to build the ‘Connected Council’ 
delivery capacity for the future.   

  
REASONS FOR RECOMMENDED OPTION 
 
16. Option ‘c’ is the recommended option as this provides a Corporate Plan that: 
 

 Starts the transition to delivering Doncaster’s emerging wellbeing goals 
that reflect a number of seismic changes to the policy context for the 
work of the Council and its Team Doncaster partners.      

 Sets out how the Council will ensure it has the capacity to deliver its 
contribution to the wellbeing goals and quality services.   

 
IMPACT ON THE COUNCIL’S KEY OUTCOMES 
 
17.  

Outcomes Implications  

Doncaster Working: Our vision is for more 
people to be able to pursue their ambitions 
through work that gives them and Doncaster a 
brighter and prosperous future;  

 Better access to good fulfilling work 

 Doncaster businesses are supported to 
flourish 

  Inward Investment 

The wellbeing goals and 
approach to delivering them 
seek to build upon the 
successes of DGT and drive 
a transformation in wellbeing 
over the next 10 years.  In 
particular, the ‘Prosperous & 
Connected’ goal.     

Doncaster Living: Our vision is for Doncaster’s 
people to live in a borough that is vibrant and full 
of opportunity, where people enjoy spending time;  

 The town centres are the beating heart of 
Doncaster 

 More people can live in a good quality, 
affordable home 

 Healthy and Vibrant Communities through 
Physical Activity and Sport 

 Everyone takes responsibility for keeping 
Doncaster clean 

 Building on our cultural, artistic & sporting 
heritage 

The wellbeing goals and 
approach to delivering them 
seek to build upon the 
successes of DGT and drive 
a transformation in wellbeing 
over the next 10 years.  In 
particular the ‘Greener & 
Cleaner’, ‘Safe & Resilient’, 
‘Skilled & Creative’ & ‘Fair & 
Inclusive   goals.      

Doncaster Learning: Our vision is for learning 
that prepares all children, young people and 
adults for a life that is fulfilling; 

 Every child has life-changing learning 
experiences within and beyond school 

 Many more great teachers work in Doncaster 
Schools that are good or better 

 Learning in Doncaster prepares young people 

The wellbeing goals and 
approach to delivering them 
seek to build upon the 
successes of DGT and drive 
a transformation in wellbeing 
over the next 10 years.  In 
particular, the ‘Skilled & 
Creative’ goal.  

 

Page 4



5 

 

for the world of work  

Doncaster Caring: Our vision is for a borough 
that cares together for its most vulnerable 
residents; 

 Children have the best start in life 

 Vulnerable families and individuals have 
support from someone they trust 

 Older people can live well and independently 
in their own homes  

The wellbeing goals and 
approach to delivering them 
seek to build upon the 
successes of DGT and drive 
a transformation in wellbeing 
over the next 10 years. In 
particular the ‘Healthy & 
Caring’ goal.   

Connected Council:  

 A modern, efficient and flexible workforce 

 Modern, accessible customer interactions 

 Operating within our resources and delivering 
value for money 

 A co-ordinated, whole person, whole life focus 
on the needs and aspirations of residents 

 Building community resilience and self-reliance 
by connecting community assets and strengths 

 Working with our partners and residents to 
provide effective leadership and governance  

The Corporate Plan is the key 
document for ensuring the 
Council has the capacity to 
deliver: quality, targeted, 
value for money services; 
build and connect community 
assets; and work in 
partnership to deliver the 
borough’s priorities.   

 
18. Following agreement of the updated Corporate Plan, changes will be 

required to the Council’s report templates to reflect the wellbeing goals. The 
Council’s performance management framework will also need to be updated.   

 
RISKS AND ASSUMPTIONS 
 
19. The Corporate Plan marks the transition to a new Borough Strategy which will 

replace the DGT Plan. Work on the Borough Strategy is ongoing to develop 
outcomes, objectives and actions. There is a risk that the priorities in the 
Corporate Plan are therefore subject to change. However, the likelihood of 
significant changes being required has been reduced as a consequence of the 
following:  

  

 The consultation on the draft Borough Strategy which has already taken 
place within the Council and with Team Doncaster partners.  This 
includes St Leger Homes, the Health and Wellbeing Board and the 
Horizon, Policy & Design Group.   

 The Borough Strategy dovetailing with recently updated supported 
strategies, including the Environment and Sustainability Strategy and 
the Education and Skills Strategy.      

 
LEGAL IMPLICATIONS [SF 24.12.20] 
 
20. Whilst there are no specific legal implications arising out of the report, the 

programmes of activity which will deliver the Corporate Plan will require 
specific and detailed legal advice as they develop further and move towards 
delivery.  The Corporate Plan forms part of the budgetary and policy framework 
and must be approved by Full Council. 

 
FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS [MS 24.12.20] 
 

Page 5



6 

 

21. The financial implications of the priorities and actions in the Corporate Plan are 
contained within the Revenue, Capital and Housing Revenue Account 2021/22 
budget reports that will be considered by Council in March 2021.  As specific 
actions and programmes of activity are developed further, more specific 
financial implications will be provided in relevant reports. 

 
HUMAN RESOURCES IMPLICATIONS [RH 07.01.21] 
 
22. There are no specific HR implications arising from this report however there 

may be HR implications within specific projects arising from the Corporate Plan 
objectives; these will be included in the appropriate individual reports. 

 
TECHNOLOGY IMPLICATIONS [PW 07.01.21] 
 
23.  Technology is an essential enabler to support the delivery of all services 

together with the wellbeing goals and key deliverables outlined in the updated 
Corporate Plan.  Robust and effective ICT governance arrangements will 
continue to be needed to ensure the delivery of the key priorities.  New 
technology requirements to support the key priorities will be considered by 
the Council’s Technology Governance Board (TGB) for inclusion in the 
Technology Forward Plan, to ensure the resources, expertise and capacity 
within services is available.  This will be monitored and continuously reviewed 
via TGB. 

 
HEALTH IMPLICATIONS [CT 6.1.21] 

 
24.  Health and inequalities in the pattern of health are caused by a range of 

different factors: socio-economic factors e.g. the availability of work, 
education, income housing and amenities; lifestyle and health-related 
behaviours e.g. smoking, diet, and physical activity; healthcare factors e.g. 
access to services, understanding the needs of the population; and personal 
factors e.g. age, gender, ethnicity, and genetics.   All of these factors 
contribute to the likelihood that an individual will develop ill health. One of the 
best ways of describing the relative contribution of these factors is the Robert 
Wood Johnson Foundation work which estimates the contribution of each 
factor.   The figure below outlines these contributions:  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
25.      Local authorities can play a significant part in creating healthy communities 

and addressing unequal patterns of poor health and wellbeing.   The 
Corporate Plan plays a key role in setting the conditions to improve health 
and wellbeing and reduce inequality.   The Corporate Plan and service 

Page 6



7 

 

priorities for 2020/21 are both informed by current health outcomes and use 
health outcomes to monitor impact.  It will be essential that the ‘Review’ phase 
of Council’s annual ‘Define and Deliver’ improvement cycle monitors progress 
in terms of improving health and wellbeing and assures that inequalities in the 
wider determinants of health and patterns of ill health are not increased.   On-
going observation and attention to these issues should be a key component 
in the successful delivery of the new Corporate Plan.   The public health 
function within the council will provide on-going support and advice in this 
area.      

   
EQUALITY IMPLICATIONS [AP 13.01.21] 
 
26.  In line with the corporate approach to compliance against the Equality Act 

2010, due regard must be shown across all activity within the Council.   As the 
Corporate Plan brings together key plans and delivery programmes that are 
already shaping how we work a due regard statement is not required.   
However as the individual components and programmes that underpin the 
Plan become further developed, due regard statements will need to be 
completed and reported as and when appropriate. The Corporate Plan 
includes Equalities, Diversity and Inclusion objectives, which form part of the 
Council’s quarterly monitoring process.   

  
CONSULTATION 
 
27. Consultation on the updated Corporate Plan document is summarised below:  
 

 Directors   - 18 Jan    

 Executive Board   - 26 Jan   

 Informal OSMC  - 29 Jan   

 Formal OSMC - 11 Feb   
 
28. The Plan will then be submitted for approval to:    
 

 Cabinet    - 16 Feb   

 Council  - 1 March   
 
BACKGROUND PAPERS 

 
29. None.  
 
GLOSSARY OF ACRONYMS AND ABBREVIATIONS  
 
DGT  - Doncaster Growing Together  
OSMC  - Overview & Scrutiny Management Committee 
SCR  - Sheffield City Region 
 
 
 
 
 
REPORT AUTHOR & CONTRIBUTORS 
 
Andy Pattinson, Senior Strategy & Performance Manager, Policy, Insight & Change 
Team   

Page 7



8 

 

Tel: 01302 734896, E-mail: andy.pattinson@doncaster.gov.uk  
Allan Wiltshire, Head of Policy, Performance & Intelligence, Policy, Insight & Change 
Team   
Tel: 01302 862307, E-mail: allan.wiltshire@doncaster.gov.uk 
 
 

Debbie Hogg 
Director of Corporate Resources 

Page 8

mailto:andy.pattinson@doncaster.gov.uk
mailto:allan.wiltshire@doncaster.gov.uk


1 

 

 Annex 1 
 
 
 
 

 

Corporate Plan 2021-22 
 

Thriving People, Places & Planet. 
 

 

 

 

  

Page 9



2 

 

Contents 

 

Foreword 
Ros Jones, Mayor of Doncaster & Damian Allen, CEO  
 

Pages 3-4 

Doncaster Wellbeing Goals 
Overview   
 

Pages 5-6 

Goal 1: Greener & Cleaner  
 

Page 7 

Goal 2: Prosperous & Connected   
 

Page 8 

Goal 3: Safe & Resilient  
 

Page 9 

Goal 4: Healthy & Compassionate  
 

Page 10 

Goal 5: Skilled & Creative   
 

Page 11 

Goal 6: Fair & Inclusive  
 

Page 12 

Connected Council 
The capacity to deliver 
 

Page 13-14 

Glossary  
 

Page 15 

 

 

 

 

  

Page 10



3 

 

Foreword 
Ros Jones, Mayor of Doncaster & Damian Allen, CEO  
 
The year 2020 tested the resilience of Doncaster people to breaking point.      
 
Whilst Doncaster was recovering from the devastating impact of the 2019 floods, the COVID pandemic 
created an unprecedented health and economic crisis.    
 
Within days of the first lockdown, we put a response plan in place to support residents and businesses.      
 
We have persevered, innovated and delivered for our communities as part of an incredible Team 
Doncaster effort to save lives, provide care and stop the virus spreading.   
 
Team Doncaster and Sheffield City Region (SCR) colleagues have worked tirelessly to get financial support 
out to those whose businesses and livelihoods have been affected.   
 
We have rapidly developed new approaches to co-ordinate support and advice, for example through 
Community Hubs and the Employment Hub.   
 
Despite the pandemic, it was also a year of delivery with new homes being built across the borough and 
major projects coming to fruition – supporting jobs, leisure, culture and learning. The Danum Gallery, Library 
and Museum, a new cinema and restaurants and a University Technical College are all due to open in 2021.   
The new railway station forecourt creates an impressive gateway into the town and urban centre master 
planning is inspiring bold new plans for developing prime sites like the Waterfront.        
 

Responding to, and recovering from the pandemic will be our priority in 2021. 
 
This includes continuing to roll out the Test, Track and Trace programmes and supporting NHS mass local 
vaccinations, which are a great cause for optimism. 
 
Helping residents get back to work, alongside supporting businesses to survive the pandemic and thrive 
as Doncaster emerges from it, remain key priorities. We have seen sharp rises in the claimant count and 
sectors reliant on face-to-face interactions, like hospitality and leisure, have been badly affected by the loss 
of trade. Most businesses have experienced reduced demand and supply chain disruption.       
 
At the same time, we must also continue to deliver essential services to support our communities, our 
businesses and our more vulnerable residents.   

 

In 2021 a sense of hope for the future will come more clearly into view.  
 
The pandemic is still amongst us and its legacy will be felt for years to come, but we have worked with our 
Team Doncaster partners to plan Doncaster’s longer-term recovery and resurgence.         
 
A new Borough Strategy will be launched in 2021, framed around six wellbeing goals which seek to 
balance the wellbeing of people and places with the wellbeing of the planet, recognising that Doncaster is 
part of an interconnected world. This Corporate Plan starts the transition to the new Borough Strategy.     
 
We will step up Doncaster’s response to the climate change and biodiversity crisis to create a sustainable 
borough that is a beacon for decarbonisation, green jobs and greenspace. The report of the Doncaster 
Climate and Biodiversity Commission and a new Environment and Sustainability Strategy are major 
milestones in the borough’s drive to tackle this profound and pressing challenge.   
 
Alongside this, we will seize every opportunity to create a more prosperous, skilled, creative, healthy and 

resilient borough. We will learn from the COVID lockdowns which have shown there are choices in how we 

organise and balance work, education and home life and how we design buildings and urban spaces.   

Page 11



4 

 

The pandemic has worsened inequalities in society, for example for vulnerable people with underlying 
mental and physical health conditions and other risk factors. Now, more than ever, all of our efforts need 
to be unpinned by a vigorous, relentless approach to equalities and tackling deprivation with the goal of 
creating a fair and inclusive borough.      
 

It is almost four years since the launch of the Doncaster Growing Together (DGT) Plan.  
 
This marked the collective commitment of Team Doncaster to create a thriving place to live, learn, care 
and work. Successes include the: 
 

 Award winning Complex Lives programme which is tackling homelessness.   

 Get Doncaster Moving programme to increases physically activity.   

 Integration of health and care to support the most vulnerable and enable people to live independently.  

 Working Win health-led employment trial, providing support for employment and in-work progression.  
 
This improved partnership working has been crucial to the effectiveness of the response to the pandemic and 
the new Borough Strategy will build upon DGT’s achievements.    
 

We have strategic opportunities to achieve significant borough-wide change. 
 
This includes the chance to: 
 

 Develop a regenerative borough that renews and improves its assets, strengths and capabilities, for 
example by developing a circular economy that keeps finite resources in a loop of use and reuse.     

 Create and attract a significant number of new green jobs and businesses and use a fair and just 
green revolution to address challenges like unemployment, poverty and health inequalities.  

 Work in partnership across regional boundaries with a ‘one catchment’ perspective, for example to 
reduce the risk of flooding.       

 Develop the ‘foundational economy’ which produces essential goods and services (e.g. health and  
social care) and promote health as the new wealth, which is valuable in its own right and also 
contributes to a thriving economy and place.    

 

Our focus also needs to be local.    
 
Doncaster is a diverse ‘place of places’ and we must respond to the distinctive needs, aspirations and 
character of our communities as reflected within the ‘Doncaster Talks’ feedback. We need to work closer 
with communities, revitalise civic engagement and build on local assets and strengths to improve wellbeing.  
 
Our approach needs to be intelligence-led, to enable the targeting of resources to where they are most 
needed and whole-system, in order to tackle interconnected challenges and to support people before they 
tip into crisis.  
 

The pandemic has placed unprecedented stress on council services and resources.  
 
We have incurred additional costs and lost income and although additional funding from the Government has 

helped, the future financial position remains uncertain.  Despite this, the Council has still set a three year 

balanced budget whilst maintaining investment in the borough and protecting our most vulnerable residents.    

We will ensure Doncaster benefits from the Government’s ‘levelling up’ agenda, building on successes like 

the SCR Devolution Deal that provides £30m for each of the next 30 years for the region.   

 
We will continue to develop the skills and capabilities to be a Connected Council ready for the future.    

 

The pandemic has highlighted the best of Doncaster.  
 
We have seen compassion, community spirit, innovation and resourcefulness in abundance.   
 
Let’s ensure this is a lasting legacy that supports one central mission: Thriving People, Places and Planet.  

Page 12



5 

 

Doncaster Wellbeing Goals 
This Corporate Plan summarises:  
 

 Doncaster’s emerging wellbeing goals for a new Doncaster Borough Strategy and how they will impact 
on residents, communities, businesses and the environment.       

 The actions the council will take over the next year to contribute to the wellbeing goals.  

 How the council will ensure it delivers quality services - as measured by service standards.    
 

Doncaster Wellbeing Wheel   
 
The Wellbeing Wheel opposite shows the six emerging 
wellbeing goals for a new Borough Strategy.    
 
The overall mission is: Thriving People, Places & Planet. 
 

To achieve this, the goals sharpen the focus on a 
number of key imperatives, including:   
 

 Improving skills and supporting creativity.  

 Improving the safety and resilience of people and 
business to challenges like pandemics. 

 Developing a more compassionate approach to 
improving health and wellbeing.  

 Developing an economy that provides good, well paid 
jobs and connecting residents to them.  

 

The ‘Greener & Cleaner‘ outer circle prioritises:  

 The need to consider the impact on the local and 
global environment in all we do.   

  

 The ‘Fair & Inclusive’ inner circle provides a focus on: 

 Tackling inequalities and improving social mobility. 

 

Wellbeing Goals – Vision   
 
 

 

Goal  Vision    

Greener & Cleaner  
Doncaster 

 

A borough that takes every opportunity to protect and improve the local and global 
environment to improve wellbeing. 
 

Prosperous & Connected  
Doncaster 

A stronger, greener and fairer economy that provides good, well paid jobs and is 
supported by improved transport, active travel and digital infrastructure. 

Safe & Resilient   
Doncaster 

Residents feel safe and communities are more resilient to challenges and 
emergencies. 

Healthy & Compassionate 
Doncaster 

A Compassionate Doncaster that improves the conditions and opportunities for 
better health and how we care for our most vulnerable residents.         

Skilled & Creative  
Doncaster 

 

Residents have improved skills and a creative culture supports wellbeing, business 
success and solutions to the borough’s challenges.      

Fair & Inclusive  
Doncaster 

A borough with reduced inequalities and improved access for all to social and 
economic opportunities. 

  

Page 13



6 

 

Wellbeing Goals – Approach  
 
Delivering the wellbeing goals will require 
innovation, new perspectives and new ways 
of working.   
 
The chart opposite includes the key 
approaches that must guide how we improve 
wellbeing. 
 
They are essential if we are to achieve long-
term improvements.   
 
Many of these approaches are already being 
taken and the requirement now is to embed 
and mainstream them. 
 
Their relative importance will vary depending 
on the particular actions, projects or 
programmes being developed; but they 
should all be considered.     

 
These are imperatives, but they do not 
exclude other approaches.   
 
New ways of doing things - to improve the future   
 Supporting innovation and behaviour change - to move from ‘business as usual’ to new approaches to 

improving wellbeing. 

 Using the ‘Three Horizons’ model to develop a vision and consider the innovation required to achieve it.    
 

Regenerative development      
 Pushing beyond sustainability (i.e. ‘doing no harm’) to regenerative development that renews and 

improves, including our biodiversity and waterways.  Also moving from a linear ‘take-make-dispose’ 
economic system to a circular one that keeps finite resources in a loop of use and reuse.       

 ‘One catchment’ joint working across boundaries, e.g. to consider whole river systems and flood risks.  
 

Working closer with communities   
 Place-based collaborative working to improve wellbeing.   

 Asset-based community development, building on distinctive local strengths and opportunities. 
 

Shared responsibilities - locally and regionally   
 Residents, businesses and organisations all contributing to improvements in wellbeing. 

 A leading role for Team Doncaster’s anchor institutions.    

 Working with regional partners, including those in the SCR, to deliver shared priorities.   
 

Intelligence led interventions 
 Using data to understand the factors driving relatively poor outcomes for different population groups and 

communities. 

 Combining different local data and insights to target services and interventions. 

 Using data to measure the impact of interventions on the wellbeing goals. 

 Broadening access to information, knowledge and emerging technologies. 
 

Whole life, whole system integration   
 Considering all life stages and the transitions between them - starting well, living well and ageing well.  

 Integrating whole systems and considering the relationships and trade-offs between different actions.   

 Early intervention and prevention - identifying and addressing concerns, risks and opportunities early. 

Page 14



7 

 

Cleaner & Greener  

A borough that takes every opportunity to protect and 
improve the local and global environment to improve 
well-being. 

What the Council needs to do well  

 Support more people to recycle and to reduce waste. 

 Regularly clean the streets and roads, removing litter, detritus, fly posting, 

graffiti and fly tips. 

 Make sure we cut grass when we say we will. 

Key priorities that our resources will support in 21-22  
 

We will: 

 Continue to implement recommendations from Doncaster’s Climate & 

Biodiversity Commission and the Environment & Sustainability 

Strategy as appropriate covering actions relating to:  

 The natural environment 

 The built environment, including designing and starting to deliver a 

long-term borough-wide Housing Retrofit programme.  Net zero 

carbon funding is provided in the 2021/22 budget for more energy 

efficient buildings. 

 The economy and green technology. 

 Sustainable consumption, education and behaviour change.   

 Deliver Biodiversity Net Gain – to ensure developments become more 

ecologically sustainable. 

 Support the low-carbon transition, to ensure the benefits of acting on 

climate change are shared widely and the costs of a sustainable transition 

do not fall on those least able to pay, or whose livelihoods are most at risk 

as the economy changes. 

 Commence the rollout of electric vehicle charging infrastructure for the 

Council’s ultra-low emission transport fleet. 

 Invest in the public estate to reduce carbon emissions. 

 Continue to implement the Environment Services Improvement Plan 

with a focus on short-term operational improvements (focus on getting the 

basics right) and longer term transformational change.   This includes 

actions covering: 

o A rapid response to COVID public health risks from fly tipping and 

littering. 

o Moving to a ‘needs-based’ approach to Street Scene operations. 

o Establishing three Area-Based ‘Rapid Response’ teams  

o A trial of naturalising areas of green space across the borough  

o Increasing the number of Green Flags awarded to Doncaster's parks 

from three to four. 

o Planting new trees across the Borough.  

 Continue to operate environment services in a safe and risk-based 

way, in line with national and organisational guidance and approaches 

regarding COVID.  

 Continue to improve the use of data and supporting IT systems to inform 

service planning, delivery and management within Environment Services. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

P
age 15



8 

 

Prosperous & Connected  

A stronger, greener and fairer economy that provides 

good, well paid jobs and is supported by improved 

transport, active travel and digital infrastructure. 

What the Council needs to do well  

 Process planning applications quickly and appropriately. 

 Market the borough as a good place to live, work and visit.  

 Encourage and support business growth and investment (indigenous and 

inward), targeting key employment sectors.  

Key priorities that our resources will support in 21-22 

We will: 
 Move the Local Plan forward to adoption. 

 Deliver major projects and review contracts for future resilience. 

 Progress initiatives such as Town Deals and the High Streets recovery 

programme to support the changing nature of retail, leisure, home working 

etc.   

 Contribute towards shaping local and regional economic recovery plans 

– this includes through actioning a town centre recovery plan, maximising 

opportunities to improve connectivity, transport, network resilience and air 

quality.  

 Support local Doncaster companies to safeguard local jobs and to cope 

with the changing national COVID legislation and guidance. 

 Scale up and refocus existing programmes through targeted funding to 

speed up the pace of support for residents impacted by COVID, e.g. 

Advance, Launchpad, RISE Programme and South Yorkshire Futures.   

 Support residents and businesses to access and utilise superfast 

broadband.  

 Agree a joint plan with public sector partners to deliver better use of our 

assets and new assets for our communities. 

 Implement our accelerated New Homes Delivery Plan, including well 

designed, highly energy efficient new council homes. 

o Design and start to build new council homes on 10 sites across 

Doncaster (Phase 1 & 2 of the Council House Build Programme). 

o Develop Phase 3 of the Council House Build Programme, which aims 

to build more than 300 new homes across the borough. 

o Support our local Housing Associations to develop more affordable 

homes, including older people’s housing and other specialist homes. 

 Evaluate the potential options for delivering mixed tenure developments, 

that have a mixture of affordable homes for rental and purchase. 

 Maximise active travel opportunities and increase modal shift through 

participation in walking and cycling. 

 Continue to push for a train station at Doncaster Sheffield Airport 

 Work to maximise our agreed South Yorkshire Devolution deal and 

continue to explore a wider Yorkshire approach. 

 Provide leadership to ensure Team Doncaster considers the opportunity 

and challenges arising from the UK’s EU exit, including:  

o Harnessing the opportunities that the EU transition will bring  

o Supporting businesses to improve their trading position and growth 

their businesses in a post COVID environment.     

 Maximise external funding including: 

o ‘Levelling up’ funds from the Government.  

o Shared Prosperity funding.  

 

 

 

 

P
age 16



9 

 

Safe & Resilient   
Residents feel safe and communities are more resilient 

to challenges and emergencies. 

What the Council needs to do well  

 Encourage and educate people on road safety. 

 Maintain the roads to appropriate standards across the borough. 

 Deal with dangerous/nuisance trees when we know about them. 

 Deal with housing hazards, resolving any issues quickly.  

Key priorities that our resources will support in 21-22  

We will: 
 

 Continue with flood mitigation projects and embed lessons learned to 

ensure robust response and recovery from flooding emergencies in the 

future. 

 Develop a new strategic approach to housing which will include: 

o A renewed focus on poor property condition in the private sector. 

o Support for households in danger of losing their home due to COVID 
economic impact. 

o Ensuring homes managed by St. Leger are modern, decent, safe and 
energy efficient. 

 Deliver safe, high quality front-line services for children and families. 

 Support, quality assurance, and constructive collective challenge across 

the Children’s Safeguarding Partnership to ensure an effective 

safeguarding system in Doncaster. 

 Increase the resilience of the Children’s Safeguarding Partnership 

through improving:  

o Early intervention and prevention.  

o The ‘front door’ model.  

o Multi-agency practice.  

o Intelligence-led performance management.  

o Governance. 

 Ensure delivery of high quality safeguarding services for children, young 

people and their families through effective contract management of 

Doncaster Children’s Services Trust. 

 Explore implementing a contextual safeguarding approach that supports 

the localities delivery model, with an emphasis on place based discussions 

through Local Solution Groups. 

 Embed whole family working for the safeguarding of children, in 

particular those deemed vulnerable and living in households where there 

are vulnerabilities, e.g. domestic violence, mental health and substance 

misuse. 

 Help people feel safe through focused work with vulnerable individuals 

and affected communities.  

 Continue to work closely with the police and prisons to tackle crime, in 

particular domestic abuse.  

 

 

 

 

 

  P
age 17



10 

 

Healthy & Compassionate  

A Compassionate Doncaster that improves the conditions 

and opportunities for better health and how we care for our 

most vulnerable residents. 

What the Council needs to do well  

 Work with communities to improve people’s well-being 

 Encourage more people to take up NHS health checks. 

 Respond to need quickly and appropriately, keeping people safe. 

 Support more people with disabilities into work. 

 Make information about services easier to access. 

 Support people to live well at home for as long as possible. 

 Reduce the amount of repeat referrals, specifically for children’s care. 

 Support families to access free childcare entitlements. 

 Support more residential homes to be rated good or better. 

Key priorities that our resources will support in 21-22  

We will: 

 Minimise the impact of COVID on Doncaster people, families, 
communities and institutions through effective COVID control 
arrangements, with a focus on BAME communities, those vulnerable to 
poverty, homelessness, unemployment, abuse and discrimination.  This 
includes using intelligence to ensure hard to reach groups access COVID 
testing and vaccinations.  

 Support the borough’s recovery and renewal following COVID by 
developing Asset Based Community Development, locality commissioning 
and the foundational health and wellbeing system, with a focus on BAME 
communities, those vulnerable to poverty, homelessness, unemployment, 
abuse and discrimination 

 Create the conditions for healthy behaviours and in particular deliver the 
Get Doncaster Moving whole system approach to address physical 
inactivity, including park developments and the leisure facilities 
developments. 

 Improve population physical and mental health and reduce health 
inequalities through strategic commissioning and the creation of key 

partnerships, including with the NHS, businesses, research organisations, 
and the Voluntary, Community, Faith and Social Enterprise sector. 

 Revise the Health in All Policies approach including the consideration of 
health in our key planning, licensing and environmental decisions. 

 Review the capacity and capability of the public health function (and 
Council) in light of expected changes to Public Health England and the likely 
increased demands this creates, including the need to be ever more 
evidence informed and research led. 

 Build better lives with people already known to social care or community 
teams. 

 Enable people to be independent, safe and well and when services are 
needed, ensuring they are provided to a good standard. 

 Target prevention to build resilience with people and places most at risk 
of escalating needs. 

 Prioritise ‘Home First’ by working with NHS partners so people spend less 
time in urgent care. 

 Improve quality and value by ensuring timely access to individually 
tailored services. 

 ‘Act personal’, using a clearer practice framework so our actions always 
reflect our principles. 

 ‘Think local’ to improve our connections with communities and partners to 
help joint working. 

 Simplify and coordinate services so that people get more continuity and 
fewer hand-offs. 

 Develop information, advice and guidance, so that there is an increased 
ability to give the right information in the right way at the right time. 

 Develop the vision, ambition and principles for our partnership approach to 
early intervention and prevention for vulnerable families and 
communities, with a clear plan to support an offer that delivers sustainable 
outcomes for families, starting with children and families and moving to an 
all age integrated offer.  

 Develop a new strategic approach to housing which will include: 
o Further improvement of homelessness prevention and the housing 

options for homeless people. 
o Working with our communities to help make homes healthier and 

safer.  

P
age 18



11 

 

Skilled & Creative  
Residents have improved skills and a creative culture 
supports well-being, business success and solutions to 
the borough’s challenges.      

What the Council needs to do well  

 Support schools and Early Years settings to deliver good or excellent 

provision. 

 Ensure Education, Health and Care plans are issued quickly and 

effectively. 

 Ensure as many children as possible gain entrance to their first choice 

school placement. 

 Work in partnership with educational settings and communities to integrate 

cultural opportunities into the local offer. 
 

Key priorities that our resources will support in 21-22  

We will:  

 Implement a new long-term Education and Skills Strategy to refocus and 

extend the borough-wide lifelong learning offer, and to improve outcomes. 

 Support positive learning outcomes in ‘the Basics’ through implementing 

targeted Reading and Maths strategies. 

 Ensure all children and young people are well-prepared for all ages and 

stages, through embedding an all-age approach to transitions.  

 Continue to develop our University City prospectus to enhance the 

‘hybrid’ Post-16 education offer across the borough. 

 Embed the work of the Social Mobility Opportunity Area Programme as 

it comes to an end. 

 Ensure that all people engaged in supporting learners with special 

educational needs and disabilities are clear about their responsibilities 

and that they deliver these in line with the principles of early intervention 

and the graduated response to need. 

 Support the wellbeing and curriculum needs of educational staff and 

learners through the COVID pandemic, the wider reopening of educational 

settings transition and beyond. 

 Collaboratively work with partners to support the economic response to 

COVID by increasing opportunities for adult learning and re-skilling and 

promoting digital literacy. 

 Work collaboratively to establish a Talent and Innovation Ecosystem for 

Doncaster that deepens relationships and pathways between the 

education and employment sectors. 

 Work with partners to develop a new Culture Strategy which supports the 

post-COVID recovery of the cultural sector, raises the profile of culture 

across the borough, and supports our wider plans for education, skills, 

wellbeing and economic growth.  

 Capitalise on the new library and museum and maximise the long-term 

opportunities of this significant asset.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

P
age 19



12 

 

Fair & Inclusive  

A borough with reduced inequalities and improved 
access for all to social and economic opportunities. 

The achievement of this vision depends upon the extent to which it shapes 
the development and delivery of other wellbeing goals and the Connected 
Council Theme. This is reflected in the ‘Key Priorities’ section below.   

What the Council needs to do well  

 As an employer, be open and inclusive and champion diversity. 

 As a service deliverer, ensure services are shaped by Equalities, Diversity 

and Inclusion (EDI) objectives and we target resources to where they are 

most needed.  

 As a community leader, support Team Doncaster to take a relentless 

approach to equalities, tackling deprivation and supporting residents to 

maximise their income, e.g. by claiming all the benefits they are entitled to.     

Key priorities that our resources will support in 21-22  
 

We will:  

 Work with Team Doncaster partners to develop the Fair and Inclusive 

wellbeing goal as a mechanism for supporting and constructively 

challenging all other goals. For example by:   

o Establishing and communicating the borough’s ambitions and 

approach to reducing inequalities. 

o Supporting the Inclusion and Fairness Forum to develop and deliver 

EDI objectives.  

o Considering and sharing equalities best practice. 

o Providing equalities data and intelligence to inform policy development 

and to assess the impact of actions.    

 Apply the Fair and Inclusive ‘lens’ to the other goals to identify: 

o Priorities that are particularly important to achieving the vision - 

examples of this are provided in the table opposite.      

o Opportunities to join together similar priorities from across the goals 

that could be better co-ordinated as a package to reduce inequalities.   

Goal/Theme Priorities to deliver the ‘Fair & Inclusive’ goal   
Cleaner & 
Greener  

 Support the low-carbon transition - to ensure the 
benefits of acting on climate change are shared 
widely and the costs of a sustainable transition do 
not fall on those least able to pay. 

Prosperous & 
Connected  

 Support for residents impacted by COVID through 
Advance, Launchpad, the RISE Programme and 
South Yorkshire Futures. 

Safe &  
Resilient   

 A renewed focus on poor property conditions in the 
private sector. 

 Support for households in danger of losing their 
home due to the COVID economic impact 

 Embed whole family working for the safeguarding of 
children, in particular the most vulnerable.  

 Help people feel safe through focused work with 
vulnerable individuals. 

Healthy & 
Compassionate 

 Minimise COVID’s impact and support the 
borough’s recovery and renewal from it – with a 
focus on BAME communities, those vulnerable to 
key factors e.g. poverty, unemployment and 
discrimination.   This includes using intelligence to 
ensure hard to reach groups access COVID testing 
and vaccinations.  

 Improve population health and reduce health 
inequalities  

Skilled & 
Creative  

 Embed the work and achievements of the Social 
Mobility Opportunity Area Programme.  

 Ensure that all people engaged in supporting 
learners with special educational needs and 
disabilities are clear about their responsibilities and 
deliver these, in line with the principles of early 
intervention and the graduated response to need. 

Connected 
Council Theme  

 Better understand our people and places and build 
this into our insight, policy and decision making. 

 Maximise the use of innovation technology and 
digital ways of working to support modern, 
accessible customer interactions. 

 

P
age 20



13 

 

Connected Council  
The capacity to deliver for the future.  
 
We will continue to develop the capabilities, resources, technology and 
knowledge needed to innovate in how we deliver services and work with 
communities and partners to improve wellbeing. 
 

Resources [Figures subject to change] 

The council continues to face the significant challenge of setting a 
balanced budget with reducing funding, rising demand for services and 
increasing costs (e.g. inflation), whilst continuing to invest in the borough and 
protect the most vulnerable in our communities.   The overall funding gap is 
£18.9m across 2021/22, 2022/23 and 2023/24. This comes on top of a long 
period of annual budget cuts.  The Special Interest Group of Metropolitan 
Authorities (SIGOMA) has calculated that the average reduction in council 
core revenue spending power between 2010/11 and 2019/20 was 18.4% 
nationally but that the reduction for Doncaster was 26.2% 
 
Despite continued budget constraints, we have a clear plan to manage our 
resources in 2021/22 and a robust and balanced gross revenue budget of 
£476.6m is expected to be in place for 2021/22. The savings proposals and 
budget framework that have enabled this budget to be set are driven by 
Doncaster’s six wellbeing goals and Directorate priorities that will help to 
deliver them.  Many of the savings proposed in the budget are a result of 
working more commercially, utilising technology and taking new approaches 
to commissioning.   We will continue to explore opportunities to reduce costs 
and increase revenue generating options during 2021/22 by: increasing 
productivity and removing waste; delivering savings through transformation in 
a multitude of ways; and managing the demand for services through a range 
of targeted measures. 
 
As well as funding high quality services for residents, the council will continue 
to invest in the future of the borough with £107.7m of capital spending 
estimated for 2021/22.  This is part of an overall package of £341.3m of 
investment to 2024/25 to stimulate growth and prosperity. Residents across 

Doncaster will benefit from investment in projects to further improve 
education, housing, infrastructure, retail, leisure and culture, as well as 
attracting investors and visitors to the borough. Wherever possible, we will 
spend our money locally to support local businesses and organisations, and 
create social value to maximise the social, economic and environmental 
impact of procurement to the benefits of our residents.     
 
The council’s services are delivered through people, directly and indirectly, 
and by far the largest element of investment is connected with the cost of 
employing and developing staff. The satisfaction of our customers, our 
efficiency and overall performance depend on our workforce’s skills, 
abilities, behaviour and motivation in modernising services and changing 
the way it works to meet customer needs. 

 

Programme & Performance Management  

To support the delivery of the wellbeing goals Team Doncaster already has:   
 

 A streamlined operating model with new boards and support groups. 

 A programme management approach to the delivery of priorities.  

 Quality of life indicators to measure overall success.  These will be 
updated as part of the development of a new Borough Strategy.    

 
Further changes will be implemented once the new Borough Strategy has 
been agreed, including ensuring the assessment of progress towards 
delivering the goals considers all contributions from across council 
Directorates and partner organisations.     
  
The Council’s performance management framework captures:  
 

 The Council’s progress in delivering its contribution to borough 
priorities, captured in quarterly monitoring reports to the council’s 
leadership. 

 The latest data for quality of life indicators.    

 Service standards - reflecting what the council needs to do well, day 
in, day out. 

 An effective performance and development scheme linked to a 
corporate skills framework.   

 Equalities, diversity and inclusion objectives. 

P
age 21



14 

 

What the Council needs to do well  

 Respond to our customers quickly, focusing on a quality customer 

experience. 

 Process Housing and Council Tax queries quickly and appropriately. 

 Ensure more people can access council services digitally. 

 Collect Council Tax and Business Rates effectively. 

 Wherever possible spend our money locally. 

 Support employees to improve performance, engagement and attendance. 

 Provide expert advice for all aspects of council business. 

 
Key priorities that our resources will support in 21-22  
 
We will: 
 Support the work to develop and implement the new Borough Strategy 

and Team Doncaster’s partnership operating model 

 Continue the implementation of the Workforce Strategy that equips staff 

with the right skills and behaviours to deliver and commission good quality 

services, underpinned by high standards of leadership, partnership 

working, and safe working practices. 

 Ensure the Medium Term Financial Strategy provides adequate 

resources to deliver on corporate priorities.  Also that it is sufficiently 

flexible to respond to the unprecedented financial volatility in the short term 

and provides a sustainable funding strategy for the longer term. 

 Maximise the use of innovation technology and digital ways of working 

to support the delivery of all priorities, service delivery and modern, 

accessible customer interactions. 

 Better understand our people and places and build this into our insight, 

policy and decision making. 

 With the support of a revised Communications and Engagement 

Strategy, continue to develop and embed effective communications with 

all stakeholders and increase the ability to give the right information in the 

right way at the right time. 

 Improve the ‘front-door’ service experience of residents by simplifying 

our co-ordination, providing more continuity and less hand-offs.   

 Support local democracy and the 2021 Local Elections in a COVID  

compliant environment 

 Implement service restarts in Economy and Environment and the 

stepping up of service provision in a safe and risk-based way, in line with 

national and organisational COVID guidance.   

 Continue to build upon the ongoing lessons learned from the response 

and recovery from the COVID emergency, to develop more agile, 

responsive and innovative Economy and Environment service offers. 

 Implement the Buildings Recovery Plans to support the timely stepping 

up of service provision across the borough 

 Deliver refreshed Responsive Asset Management Plans for Directorates 

to inform the effective use of assets in supporting service delivery. 

 Ensure that all the corporate functions of the Learning and 

Opportunities Directorate are closely monitored and delivered on time, 

including the effective implementation of the Doncaster Integrated 

People Solution (DIPS) programme and on-going business contingency 

planning. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

P
age 22



15 

 

Glossary of Terms  
 

Advance 
A programme funded by the European Regional Development Fund, 
operating under the Doncaster Employment Hub as a single gateway to 
streamline access to employment, skills, enterprise information and support. 
 

Biodiversity Net Gain  
An approach which aims to leave the natural environment in a better state 
than beforehand. 
 

Complex Lives 
Integrated partnership team working to support a cohort of people who have 
complex needs including addiction, mental health, domestic abuse and rough 
sleeping. 
 

Devolution Deal 
A deal between the Government and a region to transfer powers and funding 
to improve local quality of life. 
 

Home First 
An NHS funded service that supports those who are discharged from hospital, 
for example with care visits to provide support with everyday activities, like 
getting washed and dressed and preparing hot drinks and meals.  
 

Launchpad 
A programme, funded by the European Regional Development Fund which 
provides support to pre-start and new businesses (trading up to three years) 
in the SCR. Doncaster Chamber delivers the Launchpad programme for 
Doncaster residents and businesses, in conjunction with Doncaster Council. 
 

RISE Programme 
This supports small and medium sized enterprises (SMEs) to grow through 
the employment of graduate talent. RISE is delivered through a well-
established collaboration of the region’s local authorities, universities and a 
specialist private sector delivery partner working together to provide the 
tailored support businesses need 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
Sheffield City Region  
A diverse and connected economy bringing together Sheffield, Barnsley, 
Rotherham and Doncaster.  It comprises a Mayoral Combined Authority, 
headed by an elected Mayor and a Local Enterprise Partnership. The 
organisation works at a regional level to deliver business growth, improved 
skills and economic development.   
 

Social Mobility 
Social mobility is the movement of an individual or group from one social 
position to another over time. 
 

Social Value 
A term that describes how public bodies should consider how the services 
they commission and procure might improve the economic, social and 
environmental well-being of the area. 
 

South Yorkshire Futures 
A programme, convened by Sheffield Hallam University and backed by the 
Department for Education, which contributes to the national social mobility 
agenda through raising attainment and progression for pupils across South 
Yorkshire.  
 

Supply chains 
Networks of individuals, organisations, resources, activities and technology 
involved in the creation and sale of a product or service. 
 

‘Three Horizons’ model 
A tool for thinking about the future. It helps groups identify which of the 
dominant ‘business as usual’ approaches are no longer fit for purpose, how 
emerging trends/innovations can shape the future, and what action is needed 
to embrace them to move towards a new vision for the future.  

P
age 23



T
his page is intentionally left blank



www.doncaster.gov.uk 

 
 

____________________________________________________________________ 
 

 
                    

To the Chair and Members of the  
OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE 
 
OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY CONSIDERATION OF THE MAYOR’S BUDGET 
PROPOSALS 2021/22 – 2024/25 
 

Relevant Cabinet 
Member(s) 

Wards Affected Key Decision 

 
The Mayor 
 

 
All 

 
None 

 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

1. The purpose of this report is to consider and respond to the Mayor’s draft 
budget proposals 2021/22 to 2024/25 and enable the Mayor to take account 
of this response when presenting her proposals to Full Council on 1st March, 
2021. 

 
EXEMPT REPORT 
 
2. The report is not exempt. 
 
RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
3. That OSMC: 
 
i. Consider and respond to the Mayor’s draft budget proposals; 
ii. Adopts the key questions identified at Paragraph 8 as a focus for its review; 

and 
iii. Adopts the guidance detailed at paragraphs 12 and 13 for effectively 

reviewing the Mayor’s budget proposals; 
 
WHAT DOES THIS MEAN FOR THE CITIZENS OF DONCASTER? 
 
4. Consideration of the budget proposals improves openness and transparency 

and enables elected Members to publicly hold the Executive to account in 
relation to the impact on the quality and delivery of services.  Elected 
Members are able to reflect the concerns of the citizens and communities 
they represent throughout this process. 

 

11th February, 2021 

Page 25

Agenda Item 6



BACKGROUND 
 

5. In accordance with the Budget and Policy Framework, Overview and Scrutiny 
is required to consider and provide a response to the Mayor in respect of the 
budget proposals prior to consideration at Full Council on 1st March 2021. 
The formal proposals will be made available to Members prior to the OSMC 
meeting. 

 
6. In advance of the final budget papers, Members may wish to review the 

Medium Term Financial Strategy (MTFS) for 2021/22 to 2024/25 approved by 
Cabinet on 29th September 2020.  This can be viewed by following the 
attached link: 

 
 https://doncaster.moderngov.co.uk/documents/s27300/i%20cab%202909020%20Mai

n%20Report%20Cabinet%20200920%202010.pdf 
 
7. The MTFS provides a context for the Council’s financial strategy including 

future pressures, assumptions, challenges and financial projections set out in 
paragraphs 21 to 37.  Members should review the progress made against the 
proposals contained within the MTFS as part of their review. 

 
8. To ensure OSMC can add value to the Council’s budget setting process and 

take a holistic view of the proposals as in previous years it has been agreed 
that the Committee will focus on the following four issues: 

 
i.  To what extent are the Mayor’s proposals in line with Central Government 

policy, pressures and directives? 
 
ii. To what extent will the Mayor’s proposal ensure that the Council is able to 

contribute to the outcomes detailed within Doncaster Growing Together 
and the Corporate Plan bearing in mind the constraints detailed at i. 
above? 

 
iii. To what extent do the Mayor’s proposals demonstrate that the results of 

any consultation, research or other evidence have been taken into 
account? 

 
iv. To what extent are the challenges in delivering the savings within the 

timescales and the capacity to deliver services with reduced resources 
being addressed? 

 
9. Beneath each of these broad themes there are a number of important issues 

that Members may wish to consider such as how the proposed changes to 
services will be delivered in practice, where are the key risks and challenges 
in delivering these savings? 

 
10. It is recommended that as in previous years the Committee continue to follow 

these four lines of enquiry in relation to the Mayor’s budget proposals. 
 
 

Page 26

https://doncaster.moderngov.co.uk/documents/s27300/i%20cab%202909020%20Main%20Report%20Cabinet%20200920%202010.pdf
https://doncaster.moderngov.co.uk/documents/s27300/i%20cab%202909020%20Main%20Report%20Cabinet%20200920%202010.pdf


Guidance for Overview and Scrutiny Members 
 

11. Detailed below is some guidance that may assist Members in undertaking 
Overview and Scrutiny of the budget setting process. 

 
A.  Adding Value to the Budget Setting Process 

 
12. The Centre for Governance and Scrutiny (CfGS) highlights “four key roles 

and areas where scrutiny can add value to the Council’s management of its 
finances”.  

 
i.  Scrutiny can challenge whether the processes are effective and 

accessible - is there a level of integration between corporate and 
service planning and performance and financial management?  

 
ii.  Overview and Scrutiny can test out and make explicit whether the 

Council is directing its resources effectively to meet its priorities 
and demonstrate whether it is achieving value for money.  The 
Committee may want to satisfy itself that any proposals are aligned to 
corporate priorities and seek to deliver value for money services.  

 
iii.  Scrutiny can challenge how resources are allocated, monitor how 

they are used, and examine their impact.  Overview and Scrutiny may 
wish to challenge the assumptions behind the budget strategy and the 
key strategic considerations that have gone in to building up the budget 
e.g. what issues (such as consultation) informed decisions around the 
budget? How will service changes be delivered and how will they be 
monitored? 

 
iv. Overview and Scrutiny provides an additional and transparent 

challenge to the Executive’s management of the Council’s 
finances.  Overview and Scrutiny is a key mechanism enabling 
Councillors to represent the views of their constituents and other 
organisations to the Executive and Local Authority.  This enables views 
to be taken into account in policy development and expressed through 
the budget.  Councillors are then able to feed back to the public where 
informed choices have been made and the reasons for doing this. 

 
B. Avoiding Common Pitfalls 

 
13. To respond effectively to the Mayor’s proposals and avoid some common 

pitfalls OSMC may wish to take account of the following issues that have 
been identified through best practice Scrutiny research: 

 
i.  Understanding the purpose of Overview and Scrutiny.  Scrutiny’s 

role is not a political process or a means of putting forward an 
alternative budget.  Instead OSMC may wish to explore the extent to 
which the proposals; align with the key priorities of the Borough, are 
based on sound reasoning, take account of the views of the public and 
will deliver effective value for money services particularly during a time 
of reduced resources. 

 
ii.  Remain Strategic – Overview and Scrutiny should focus on the 

strategic budget assumptions and impact they will have on services.  
Detailed line by line analysis will obscure the Scrutiny process and make 

Page 27



it difficult to see the full picture and focus on the wider outcomes.  
Overview and Scrutiny may wish to make recommendations for changes 
(but not alternative proposals) or for the inclusion of additional 
considerations within the budget.  

 
iii. Link to Stated Priorities – Overview and Scrutiny should examine how 

the proposals align with those priorities already agreed within Doncaster 
Working Together. 

 
 Next Steps 
 
14. Once the Committee has agreed its response this will be communicated to 

the Mayor and provide an opportunity for any comments to be considered 
prior to the proposals being presented to Full Council. 

 
OPTIONS CONSIDERED 
 
15. No other options have been considered. 

REASONS FOR RECOMMENDED OPTION 

16. The process identified for reviewing the budget will ensure there is a clear 
understanding of Overview and Scrutiny’s role and how the review will be 
undertaken.  

 
IMPACT ON THE COUNCIL’S KEY OUTCOMES 
 
17. 

 Outcomes Implications  
 Doncaster Working: Our vision is for 

more people to be able to pursue their 
ambitions through work that gives 
them and Doncaster a brighter and 
prosperous future; 

 

 Better access to good fulfilling work 

 Doncaster businesses are 
supported to flourish 

  Inward Investment 
 

The Council’s budget will 
ultimately support and impact 
on all of the priority outcomes.  
In terms of its role in reviewing 
the budget proposals this will 
support the outcome of 
“Working with our partners we 
will provide strong leadership 
and governance”. 
 

 Doncaster Living: Our vision is for 
Doncaster’s people to live in a 
borough that is vibrant and full of 
opportunity, where people enjoy 
spending time; 
 

 The town centres are the beating 
heart of Doncaster 

 More people can live in a good 
quality, affordable home 

 Healthy and Vibrant Communities 
through Physical Activity and Sport 

 Everyone takes responsibility for 

 

Page 28



keeping Doncaster Clean 

 Building on our cultural, artistic and 
sporting heritage 

 
 Doncaster Learning: Our vision is for 

learning that prepares all children, 
young people and adults for a life that 
is fulfilling; 
 

 Every child has life-changing 
learning experiences within and 
beyond school 

 Many more great teachers work in 
Doncaster Schools that are good or 
better 

 Learning in Doncaster prepares 
young people for the world of work  
 

 Doncaster Caring: Our vision is for a 
borough that cares together for its 
most vulnerable residents; 
 

 Children have the best start in life 

 Vulnerable families and individuals 
have support from someone they 
trust 

 Older people can live well and 
independently in their own homes 

 

 Connected Council:  

 A modern, efficient and flexible 
workforce 

 Modern, accessible customer 
interactions 

 Operating within our resources and 
delivering value for money 

 A co-ordinated, whole person, 
whole life focus on the needs and 
aspirations of residents 

 Building community resilience and 
self-reliance by connecting 
community assets and strengths 

 Working with our partners and 
residents to provide effective 
leadership and governance  

 

 
RISKS AND ASSUMPTIONS 
 
18. There is a risk that responding to the Mayor’s draft budget proposals may be 

driven by party politics or result in the development of alternative budget 
proposals both of which are incompatible with the role of Overview and 
Scrutiny.  The development of specific questions based around reviewing 
how the Mayor’s proposals take account of national policy context, are 

Page 29



evidence based and link to wider priorities will seek to ensure the process 
remains focused and appropriate. 

 
LEGAL IMPLICATIONS [SF 01/02/21]  
 
19. The role of Overview and Scrutiny in the Council’s budget setting process is 

detailed within the Council’s Budget and Policy Framework Procedure 
Rules.  The Executive is required to provide its budget proposals (including 
details of any consultations it has undertaken) to the relevant Overview and 
Scrutiny Panel or Management Committee, which will be given at least 4 
weeks to respond to those proposals.   

 
20.  Not less than 4 weeks later, the Executive will report its budget proposal to 

the Full Council showing how any response from the Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee and the outcome of consultation, research or investigations were 
taken into account. 

 
FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS [RLI 27/01/21] 
 
21. There are no specific financial implications contained in this report.  The 

specific financial implications relating to the budget are contained in the 
Mayor’s draft budget proposals. 

 
HUMAN RESOURCES IMPLICATIONS [KM 25/01/2021] 
 
22. There are no specific Human Resource implications associated with this 

report. 
 
TECHNOLOGY IMPLICATIONS [PW  25/01/21] 
 
23. There are no specific technology implications in relation to Overview and 

Scrutiny consideration of the Mayor’s budget proposals.   
 

HEALTH IMPLICATIONS [RS 28/01/2021] 
 

24. The choices the council makes in both raising and allocating revenue budgets 
will impact on the health of the population. In general, 20% of what 
contributes to health is due to clinical care, 30% due to behavioural factors, 
40% due to socio-economic factors and 10% due to the built environment. 
The State of the Borough assessment and Doncaster Growing Together plan 
are both informed by health outcomes and use health outcomes to monitor 
impact. The impact on a set of health outcomes are also incorporated in the 
council’s corporate plan. Within the financial resources available, this paper 
sets out clearly the broad areas of revenue investment in both universal and 
targeted services and how within a reduced financial envelope there are 
plans to maintain and even improve the quality of local services. Wherever 
possible commissioners and providers of services should seek to maximise 
social value consider long term social, environmental and economic 
sustainability and resilience. With sustained long-term cuts in funding, there is 
likely to be implication on potentially increasing health inequalities. This 
needs to be considered during the implementation phase so that inequalities 
and health inequalities are addressed, and monitored. The lack of national 
guidance on the future of the public health grant from April 2021 places a risk 
on future public health activity. Where further cabinet reports are required 
report authors should consider the need for formal health impact 

Page 30



assessments or early involvement of the public health team to minimise 
unintended impacts on health. Health impacts should also be addressed in 
the due regard statements that are developed alongside these further reports. 

 
EQUALITY IMPLICATIONS (CR 28/01/21) 
 
25. There are no significant equality implications associated with this report. 

Throughout the course of its review the Committee may wish to seek further 
information on the extent to which the proposals will have an impact on 
individual’s and other groups who share protected characteristics. 

 
CONSULTATION 
 
26.  Prior to the Mayor’s draft budget proposals being made available to this 

meeting, the Committee met with Directors to discuss proposals set out in the 
report.  In accordance with the Councils Constitution this provides a 4 week 
consultation period for the Council’s Scrutiny function. 

 
BACKGROUND PAPERS 

27. The Centre for Governance and Scrutiny/Local Government Information 
Unit/the Chartered Institute of Finance and Accountancy Guidance, “On the 
Money” 

 
REPORT AUTHOR & CONTRIBUTORS  
 
Andrew Sercombe, Governance Manager 
Tel:  01302 734354.   
Email:  andrew.sercombe@doncaster.gov.uk 
Christine Rothwell, Senior Governance Officer 
Tel:  01302 735682 
Email:  christine.rothwell@doncaster.gov.uk 
Caroline Martin, Senior Governance Officer 
Tel:  01302 735682 
Email:  caroline.martin@doncaster.gov.uk 
 

Debbie Hogg 
Director of Corporate Resources  

 

Page 31

mailto:christine.rothwell@doncaster.gov.uk


This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	5 Corporate Plan
	Corporate Plan 2021-22 - to OSMCv2

	6 Overview and Scrutiny Consideration Of The Mayor's Budget Proposals 2021/22 - 2024/25

